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School District 

(J)r. 1{9n rtofman, Superintendent 

Certification of Annual Financial Report 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Connie Archibald 

Lynn Capener 
Karen Cronin 
James Fuller 

Nancy Kennedy 
Bryan Smith 

Heather Young 

Under penalty of perjury, I, Dr. Ron Tolman and Rodney L. Cook certify that the annual financial report of 
Box Elder School District for the year ended June 30, 2014 fairly presents in all material respects the 

:::::, coz~ of Box E~::.:,:oo-lf-D~i-st::r"f:ic~t~. ~~~'[.~""""-=-....:...-=---

Notes: 

chief Administrative Officer 
Dr. Ron Tolman 

a. This certification is to be submitted with the annual financial report to the Office of the Utah State 
Auditor. 

b. Utah Code 11-50-202 designates the chief administrative officer as the individual appointed as the 
chief administrative officer of the political subdivision in accordance with statute; or if a chief 
administrative officer is not appointed in accordance with statute, the individual designated as the 
chief administrative officer by the governing body of the political subdivision. In designating a chief 

administrative officer, the governing body shall designate the individual who holds a managerial or 

similar position to perform administrative duties or functions for the political subdivision. 

c. Utah Code 11-50-202 designates the chief financial officer as the individual appointed as the chief 
financial officer of the political subdivision in accordance with statute; or if a chief financial officer is 
not appointed in accordance with statute, the individual designated as the chief financial officer by 

the governing body of the political subdivision. In designating a chief financial officer, the 
governing body shall designate the individual who has primary responsibility for preparing the 

annual financial report. 
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School District 

CDr. 1?JJn rr'o(man, Superintendent 

October 24, 2014 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Connie Archibald 

Lynn Capener 
Karen Cronin 
James Fuller 

Nancy Kennedy 
Bryan Smith 

Heather Young 

To: President Smith, Members of the Board of Education, and the Patrons of the Box Elder 
School District: 

State law requires that school districts publish, within five months of the close of each fiscal 
year, a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) and audited by a firm of licensed Certified Public Accountants in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the annual financial report of the Box Elder 
School District (District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 

These statements are designed to meet the needs of a broad spectrum of readers of financial 
statements and are divided into three major sections: 

• Introductory section- Introduces the reader to the report and includes this transmittal letter. 

• Financial section - Consists of the independent auditor's report, management's discussion 
and analysis, the basic financial statements, and combining and individual fund statements 
and schedules. 

Internal controls This report consists of management's representations concerning the finance 
related internal controls of the District. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility 
for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide 
a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the District has 
established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the 
District's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the 
preparation of the District's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of 
internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the District's comprehensive framework of 
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that 
the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert 
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all 
material respects. 

Independent audits Wiggins & Co. P.C., a firm of licensed Certified Public Accountants, has 
audited the District's financial statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the District for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2014 are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a 
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test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, 
based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion 
and that the District's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 are fairly 
presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first 
component of the financial section of this report. 

The independent audit of the financial statements of the District was part of a broader, federally 
mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The 
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not 
only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's 
internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal 
controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports 
are available in the District's Single Audit Section of this report. 

Management's discussion and analysis GAAP requires that management provide a narrative 
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of 
management's discussion and analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to 
complement the MD&A and should be read in connection with it. The District's MD&A can be 
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

District profile The District was created by a resolution of the Box Elder County 
Commissioners on June 20, 1907. The District is a legally separate entity enjoying all rights and 
privileges accorded political subdivisions in the State of Utah. The District is fiscally 
independent. Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in the Board of Education 
consisting of seven members. The Board of Education is responsible, among other things, for 
developing and adopting policy, adopting the budget, levying taxes, incurring bonded debt, 
supervising committees, and hiring both the superintendent and business administrator. The 
superintendent and business administrator are responsible for carrying out the policies of the 
Board of Education and oversee the day-to-day operations of the District. The Board of 
Education is elected on a non-partisan basis. Board members serve four-year staggered terms 
with no more than four board members elected every two years. 

The major purpose of the District is to provide public education for those who reside within the 
boundaries of the District, which are congruent with boundaries of Box Elder County. To 
accomplish this purpose, as of Fall 2014, the District operates two traditional high schools 
(grades 10-12), two middle schools (grades 8-9), two intermediate schools (grades 6-7), and 14 
elementary schools (grades k-5). The District also operates three schools in the far western 
area of the county, which are designated as Necessarily Existent Small Schools (NESS). These 
schools have enrollments of 11 to 36 students and provide instruction for classes ranging from 
kindergarten through tenth grade. In addition, the District operates an alternative high school, 
Dale Young Community High School. As of October 1, 2014, the District had an enrollment of 
11,242 students. 

Budgetary control The District adopts an annual budget for its funds. This budget acts as the 
financial operating plan for the entire year. Revisions may be implemented during the year 
authorizing a larger appropriation of available resources through a public hearing and approval 
from the Board. 
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All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end with the exception of those indicated as 
committed against the fund balance. During May of each year, the superintendent submits to 
the Board a proposed operating budget for the next fiscal year commencing July 1st. This 
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. Also included is the 
final budget for the fiscal year ending June 30th. 

If the district does not propose to exceed the certified tax rate, a public hearing is held prior to 
June 22nd at which the budget is formally adopted by resolution of the Board after public input. If 
the District proposes to exceed the certified tax rate, the budget is formally adopted in August 
when data is available to set the rates. 

The District's fiscal 2014 balances along with anticipated revenues are sufficient to meet the 
fiscal 2015 budget as presented to the public in June of 2014. 

Economic condition and outlook The economic prospect for the District is largely dependent 
on state aid, which is 68% of general fund revenues. Since 1988, the State of Utah has been 
able to end each fiscal year with a surplus. However, from fiscal years 2008 through 2011, 
there were no increases from the state and the district lost students to the newly opened charter 
school. Public Education has been the recipient of a generous effort by lawmakers and the 
governor, to be held harmless in budgeting. In fiscal years 2011 through 2013 slow economic 
recovery required the use of set aside fund balance to balance the general fund budget. With 
improved economic conditions and student growth the district general fund balanced and had 
surplus in the 2013-14 fiscal year. 

The Certified Tax Rate Valuation for Box Elder County has increased by 22.23% over five years 
from 2009 to 2014. (Utah State Tax Commission) The construction of the Proctor & Gamble 
manufacturing facility and the Ruby Pipeline will serve to increase property values over the next 
few years despite a loss of $73,000,000 taxable value with the shutdown of ATK's production 
facilities. Total non-farm payroll in the county has decreased from $738,870,420 in 2006 to 
$533,630,666 in 2012.(-27.8%) (Utah Division of Work Force Services) Median household 
income increased from $50,231 to $55,918 (11.3%) over the same period. (US Dept. Commerce 
census figures) 

Student enrollment Enrollment has declined from a high of 11,320 in the October 1st count in 
1993 to 10,506 in 2003 with an increase to 11,242 in 2014, which is 111 students more than last 
year. The district has almost recovered from the student loss as a result of the opening of the 
Promontory School of Expeditionary Learning, K-8 Charter School, in Perry, Utah. As of 
October 1, 2014, it is estimated 396 students enrolled in the charter school who were attending 
our schools previously. 

The state school finance program for fiscal 2014 provided every Utah school district with a basic 
operation program of $2,899 per weighted pupil unit (WPU), plus added amounts for other 
special programs and grants. Below is a historical review of WPU values for the past five years. 

Fiscal Year WPUValue Dollar Change Percent Change 
2009-10 2,577 $0 0% 
2010-11 2,577 $0 0% 

2011-12 2,816 $239 8.49% 
2012-13 2,842 $83 2.86% 
2013-14 2,899 $57 1.97% 
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Cash management and investments The District utilizes the Utah Public Treasurer's 
Investment Fund (UPTIF) as a cash and investment pool as well as a Zions Bank Liquid Asset 
Management (LAM) account, both of which are available for use by all funds. The UPTIF is an 
external deposit and investment pool shared by various governmental entities in the State in 
which monies are pooled to improve investment efficiency and yield. These funds are invested 
primarily in money market securities and contain no withdrawal restrictions. As such, the 
monies invested in this fund are not insured and are subject to the same market risks as any 
similar investment in money market funds. The LAM account invests in similar state money 
management council approved investments. 

Both investments comply with the provisions of the Utah Money Management Act. This law 
requires the depositing of funds in a "qualified depository" which is defined as any financial 
institution whose deposits are insured by an agency of the Federal government and which has 
been certified by the Commissioner of Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the 
Act and adhering to the rules of the Utah Money Management Council. 

The Money Management Act also defines the types of securities allowed as appropriate 
temporary investments for the District and the conditions for making investment transactions. 
The District considers the actions of the Money Management Council to be necessary and 
sufficient for adequate protection of its uninsured bank deposits. 

Risk management The District participates with an equity position in the Utah School Boards 
Risk Management Mutual Insurance Association to cover its workers compensation risks. 
Unemployment compensation is handled on a cost of benefits reimbursement basis with the 
State of Utah. The District also participates in the State Risk Management system for property 
and liability insurance. This is a pooled arrangement where the participating entity's annual 
premiums are designed to pay claims and build sufficient reserves to allow the system to protect 
participants with its own capital. The pool reinsures excess loss to preserve the capital base. 

Acknowledgements We express our appreciation to everyone in the business department and 
the Superintendent's office who assisted in the preparation of this report. We also thank the 
members of the Board of Education for their interest and support in conducting the financial 
affairs of the District in a responsible and progressive manner. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dr. Ronald Tolman 
Superintendent 
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ACCOUNTANTS o.PC 

To the Board of Education 
Box Elder School District 
Brigham City, Utah 84302 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental acttvttles, the 
business-type activity, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Box Elder School District, Utah (the "District"), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Untied States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

P.O. DRAWER 577 • 205 NORTH MAIN 5 
BRIGHAM CITY, UTAH 84302 • (435) 723-8563 • FAX (435) 723-8565 



Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activity, the 
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of Box Elder School District as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in 
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary 
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages 8-13 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Box Elder School District's basic financial statements. The introductory 
sedion and combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as 
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The combining and individual major and nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and 
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
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additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. The introductory section has not been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also issued a report dated October 
24, 2014, on our consideration of Box Elder School District's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results 
of our audit. 

2J' . sri~~ tt CD, Pc 
October 24, 2014 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As the management of the Box Elder School District (District), we offer readers of the District's financial 
statements this narrative discussion, overview, and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here, in 
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be 
found on pages I - 4 of this report. 

Financial Highlights 

The District categorizes its revenues in three groups by source, federal, state, and local. Federal revenues 
include categorical funding for special programs, grants, and other specifically designated purposes. State 
revenues include categorical funding as described above, enrollment based funding using weighted pupil 
units (WPU), and other funding which is distributed by various formulas designed to assure an equitable 
allocation among all districts in the state. Local revenues are derived from property tax, tuition, other fees 
and charges, and interest income. 

On November 6, 2007, District patrons approved a $70,000,000 bond issue for the purpose of purchasing one 
or more school sites, buildings and furnishings and improving existing school property. On August 27, 2008, 
$25,000,000 of that authorization was issued at a premium of $597,277.25 and construction/refurbishing of 
the District's two high schools began. An additional $31,000,000 issue was closed on June 17, 2009 at a 
premium of $618,633.00. Those projects were completed during the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2011. At 
the meeting of October 12, 2011, the Board adopted a Parameters Resolution in preparation for the sale of 
the remaining $14,000,000 to complete the elementary school projects. The sale was held on November 9, 
2011 and the District received a premium of$1,864,248.90 on the sale. The premium received on the sale of 
these three issues has allowed the District to replace the gym at the Box Elder Middle School and to build a 
replacement for the elementary school at Snowville. In addition, the Municipal Building Authority (MBA) 
sought and received an additional $3,000,000 through a Qualified School Construction Bond (QSCB). 
Zions Bank purchased the entire issue at par but with an interest rate of 0%. That funding has been applied 
to the construction of the Fielding Elementary school. The Snowville School and Box Elder Middle School 
Gym projects were both completed in the 2013 fiscal year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial 
statements. The District's basic financial statements comprise three components: I) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also 
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Government-wide financial statements The Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private sector business. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the assets and deferred outflows and liabilities 
and deferred inflows of the District, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
District is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the net position of the District changed during 
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are 
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reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. 
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

The Government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14 and 15 of this report. 

Fund financial statements A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and 
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: government funds, 
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide 
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such information may be useful in evaluating the government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, 
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented 
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental 
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. 

The District maintains six individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Debt Service Fund and the Capital Projects Fund, all of 
which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other three governmental funds are combined into a 
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is 
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement 
has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 16- 20 of this report. 

Proprietary funds Proprietary funds are used to account for the business-type activities, such as leasing 
buildings or equipment, which may properly be conducted by the governmental entity. Proprietary funds are 
reflected in the government-wide financial statement. 

The District uses a proprietary fund to account for the activities of the Municipal Building Authority. The 
basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 21 - 23 of this report. 

Fiduciary funds Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
governmental entity. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because 
the resources of those funds are not available to support the District's own programs. 

The District uses an agency fund to account for resources held for student activities and groups. The basic 
fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 24 ofthis report. 
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Component unit A Component Unit is a distinct legal entity separate from the District, the resource of 
which is dedicated to furthering the interests of the District. These funds are not reflected in the 
government-wide financial statements because the resources ofthose funds are not available at the District's 
discretion. However, since those resources are dedicated to furthering the interests of the District the 
financial statements of the Box Elder County School District Foundation are presented as a component unit. 

Notes to the financial statements The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the 
financial statements can be found on pages 25-50 of this report. 

Other information The combining statements referred to in connection with non-major governmental funds 
and internal service funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. 
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 51 -57 of this report. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position over time. 
The District assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $118,424,669 at the 
close of the most recent fiscal year. 

BOX EDER SCHOOL DISTRICTS Net Position 

Governmental Activities BusinesS-!XJ2e Activities Total 
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 

Cash and other assets $ 86,002,868 $ 84,335,376 $ 309,787 $ 321,968 $ 86,312,655 $ 84,657,344 
Capital assets 126,540,256 125,825,602 2,857,610 2,932,081 129,397,866 128,757,683 

Total assets 212,543 124 210 160 978 3,167,397 3,254 049 215,710,521 213,415,027 
Other Liabilities 8,059,879 7,392,767 8,059,879 7,392,767 
Long-term liabilities outstanding 58,434 025 63 013,258 2,572,000 2,786,000 61 006,025 65,799,258 

Total liabilities 66,493 904 70,406,025 2,572,000 2,786,000 69,065,904 73,192,025 
Deferred lntlows (Unearned Property Taxes) 27,624,551 27,942,066 27,624,551 27,942,066 
Total Liabilities and Deferred lntlows 94 118,455 98,348,091 2,572,000 2,786,000 96,690,455 101,134,091 
Net position: 

Invested in capital asssets,net of related debt 76,907,167 71,864,319 285,610 77,192,777 71,864,319 
Restricted 41,381,282 39,400,293 41,381.282 39,400,293 
Unrestricted 136,220 548,275 309,787 468,049 446.007 I ,016,324 

Total net J20Sition $ 118,424,669 $ 111,812,887 $ 595,397 $ 468,049 $ 119.020.066 $ 112,280,936 

The largest portion of the District's net position (65%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, 
water stock, buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment), less any related debt (general obligation 
bonds payable and obligations under capital leases less unspent bond proceeds) used to acquire those assets 
that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to students; consequently, 
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District's investment in its capital assets is 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided 
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the District's net position (35%) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position, $446,007 may be 
used to meet the District's ongoing obligations to students, employees, and creditors. 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT'S Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-tv~e Activities Total 
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 
Charges for services $ 7,075,544 $ 6,912,024 $ 214,000 $ 213,909 $ 7,289,544 $ 7,125,933 
Operating grants and contributions 23,837,262 23,137,279 128,236 148,800 23,965,498 23,286,079 
Capital grants and contributions 114,144 13,464 114,144 13,464 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 30,156,617 33,210,405 30,156,617 33,210,405 
Federal and state aid not restricted to 

specific purposes 30,841,645 27,668,024 30,841,645 27,668,024 
Earnings on investments 667,019 762,437 283 667,019 762,720 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 32,769 42,493 32,769 42,493 

Total revenues 92,725,000 91,746,126 342,236 362,992 93,067,236 92,109,118 

Expenses: 
Instructional services 47,413,196 46,938,190 47,413,196 46,938,190 
Supporting services: 

Students 2,141,012 2,137,811 2,141,012 2,137,811 
Instructional staff 1,466,246 I ,363,773 1,466,246 1,363,773 
District administration 700,183 676,940 700,183 676,940 
School administration 4,548,671 4,581,746 4,548,671 4,581,746 
Business 1,832,940 2,174,953 1,832,940 2,174,953 
Operation and maintenance of facilities 6,948,237 6,873,260 6,948,237 6,873,260 
Transportation 4,418,188 4,414,699 4,418,188 4,414,699 
Non-instructional services 1,914,300 I ,835,006 1,914,300 1,835,006 
Community services 1,621,274 I ,752,830 1,621,274 1,752,830 
Student Activities 3,382,584 3,193,005 3,382,584 3,193,005 

School food services 4,747,594 5,016,215 4,747,594 5,016,215 
Capital outlay 2,762,220 3,257,572 2,762,220 3,257,572 
Interest on long-term liabilities 2,216,573 2,352,790 2,216,573 2,352,790 

Total expenses 86,113,218 86,568,790 86,113,218 86,568,790 
Business Type Activities: 
Municipal Building Authority 214,888 188,412 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 6,611,782 5,177,336 127,348 174,580 6,739,130 5,351,916 
Change in net position 6,611,782 5,177,336 127,348 174,580 6,739,130 5,351,916 

Net position-beginning-as restated Ill ,812,887 I 06,635,551 468,049 293,469 112,280,936 I 06,929,020 
Net position-ending $ 118,424,669 $ 111,812,887 $ 595,397 $ 468,049 $ 119,020,066 $ 112,280,936 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the District is able to report positive balances in all three categories of 
net position, both for the District as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental activities. This status is 
consistent with that of the prior fiscal year. 

The total net position of the District grew by $6,739,130 during the fiscal year. This 1s due to the new 
construction projects, prudent budgeting and careful management of the District's funds. 

Financial Analysis of the District's Funds 

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. 

The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District's financing 
requirements. The fund balance is divided between non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and 
unassigned balances. The District has portions of the assigned fund balance to set resources aside for certain 
government-wide liabilities that are not recognized in the governmental funds. State law allows for assigned 
balances in the General Fund to be appropriated in the following year's budget. Fund balances of capital 
projects and other governmental funds are set aside by state law to be spent for the purpose of the fund and 
are not available for spending at the District's discretion. 
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The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District. At the end of the fiscal year, the unassigned 
fund balance was $2,921,754. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement #54 has 
established a requirement for categorization of the fund balances that combines the former designations of 
Undistributed Reserve and Unappropriated balances together in a new category, named Unassigned. This 
category has a combined balance of$2,921,754 which includes the Undistributed Reserve, or 'Rainy Day" 
fund established and reserved by Board action in the amount of $2,320,000. The total fund balance was 
$9,488,433. The unassigned fund balance decreased by $194,797 while the total fund balance increased by 
$1, Ill ,577 during the current fiscal year. Key factors in this change are as follows: 

• The decrease in unassigned fund balances is due to increased assigned revenues. 
• The increase in fund balance occurred from increased program and assigned revenues. 

Expenditures for general District purposes totaled $67,712,029 an increase of 3% over the previous year. 
Instructional services represent 64% of general fund expenditures. 

The General Fund balances have been assigned or restricted for the following purposes: 

• Assignment for undistributed reserve of $2,320,000 or 3.3% of General Fund budgeted revenues. As 
allowed by state law, the District has established reserves within the General Fund, which are set aside 
for contingencies or possible reductions in state funding. These funds are not to be used in negotiation or 
settlement of contract salaries. The maintenance of a sufficient reserve is a key credit consideration in 
the District's bond rating. State law limits such reserves to 5% of general fund budgeted revenues. 

• Restriction or assignment for programs of $6,566,679. Fund balance within the General Fund is 
restricted or set aside to pay for assigned purposes, commitments and program activities at June 30, 2014 
that will be re-appropriated and honored during the subsequent year. 

General Fund salaries totaled $40,040,314 while the associated fringe benefits of retirement, social security, 
unemployment, worker's compensation, and health and accident insurance added $18,246,765 m wage 
related expense, which taken together accounts for 86% of General Fund expenditures. 

The Capital Projects Fund has a total balance of $28,395,933, all of which is reserved for acquisition of 
capital assets and purchase of construction supplies and related expenditures. These funds will also be used 
for some of the expense related to the ongoing major construction projects and other major capital 
maintenance. 

The School Lunch Special Revenue Fund balance of $981,604 includes $119,600 for inventories. The entire 
balance is to be used for the school lunch program. 

The Box Elder County School District Foundation received income in the form of grants, contributions, and 
earnings on investments of$47,905 which is a decrease of$13,018 from the previous year. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The amount expended was $2.004.512 less than the final budget or 2.9% of total general fund expenditures. 
Final revenues were lower than final budgetary estimates by $328,842 or .5% 

12 



Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets The capital projects fund is used to account for the costs incurred in acquiring and improving 
sites, constructing and remodeling facilities, and procuring equipment necessary for providing educational 
programs for all students within the District. 

The District operates schools in twenty-three locations with administrative and maintenance facilities at three 
separate sites. These buildings total more than 1, 732,139 square feet and are spread across an area of 5, 723 
square miles, which is more than any of the three smallest states. These structures and their additions have 
construction dates ranging from 1912 to 2014. 

Additional information on the District's capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the basic financial 
statements. 

Debt Administration 

The general obligation bonded debt of the District is limited by state law to 4% of the fair market value of the 
total taxable property in the District, which was $4,054,337,970. Therefore, the legal debt limit at June 30, 
2014, is $162,I73,5I9. General obligation debt at June 30, 2014 was $49,490,000 resulting in a legal debt 
margin of$II2,683,5I9. 

Additional information on the District's long-term debt can be found in Note 6 to the basic financial 
statements. 

Changing Enrollment within the District 

The components of changing enrollment are migration and the kindergarten-to-grade-12 (K-12) differential. 
The K-12 differential is the variance in the number of kindergarten students entering and the number of grade 
I2 students leaving the District in a given year. 

Enrollment in the District declined since I993, from a high of II ,320 down to 10,506 in 2003 then back up to 
the present level of II ,242, as compared to last year's enrollment of II, I31. With the current birth and 
migration trends the student population is increasing at a rate of about I% per year. Any increase in student 
population will also increase basic funding from the state. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Box Elder School District's finances 
for all those with an interest in such matters. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information or copies of the separately issued Foundation report 
should be addressed to the Office of the Business Administrator, Box Elder School District, 960 South Main, 
Brigham City, Utah 84302-3162. 

13 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 



I I 
I l 

I 

I I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I Basic Financial Statements 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

i . 
I I 
I 

f 

I 



I 
BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT I STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2014 

I Primary Government 
Governmental Business-Type Component 

Activities Activities Total Unit I Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 35,505,875 $ 309,699 $ 35,815,574 $ 440,191 
Investments 15,336,923 15,336,923 7,829 

I Receivables: 
Taxes 27,624,551 27,624,551 

Accotmts 52,120 52,120 480 

Intergovernmental 1,797,061 1,797,061 I Deposits 5,566,738 5,566,738 

Inventories 119,600 119,600 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 88 88 
Capital assets: I Land, construction in progress, and water stock 13,071,244 13,071,244 

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 113,469,012 2,857,610 116,326,622 

Total assets 212,543,124 3,167,397 215,710,521 448,500 

I Liabilities and Dererred Inflows of Resources: 
Accotmts payable 1,427,443 1,427,443 18,702 
Contracts and retainage payable 108,131 108,131 I Deposits payable 373,669 373,669 

Accrued interest 1,015,998 1,015,998 
Accrued salaries and benefits 3,886,762 3,886,762 

I Due to clubs 1,247,876 1,247,876 

Unearned revenue 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 4,395,000 214,000 4,609,000 

I Due in more than one year 54,039,025 2,358,000 56,397,025 

Total liabilities 66,493,904 2,572,000 69,065,904 18,702 

Deferred Inflows ofResoucrcs: I Uneamed property taxes 27,624,551 27,624,551 

Total liabilities and deterred inflows ofresources 94,118,455 2,572,000 96,690,455 18,702 I 
Net Position: 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 76,907,167 285,610 77,192,777 

I Restricted tor: 
Non-expendable amounts: 

School tood services inventory 119,600 119,600 

EndO\\lllCnts 34,900 

I Expendable amounts: 
State and other programs 5,837,439 5,837,439 

Student activities 635,048 635,048 

School tood services 862,004 862,004 I Debt service 9,336,919 9,336,919 

Capital projects 24.590.272 24,590,272 

Fotmdation programs 362,003 

I Unrestricted 136.220 309,787 446,007 32,895 

Total net position $ 118.424,669 $ 595,397 $ I 19,020,066 $ 429,798 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement. I 14 
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- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Pro!lam Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Chan11es in Net Position 

Operating Capital Grants Primary Government 
Charges for Grants and and Governmental Bu<;iness- type 

~enses Services Contnbutions Contnbutions Activities Activities Total 

FlU1Ctions 
Govcrnrnental activities: 

Instructional services $47,413,196 $ I ,777,581 $ 15,850,183 $ 114,144 $ (29,671 ,288) $ $ (29,671,288) 
Supportn1g services. 

Students 2,141,012 684,247 17,027 (I ,439, 738) (1,439,738) 
Instructional statr I ,466,246 11,083 (1,455,163) (1,455,163) 
District administration 700,183 (700,183) (700,183) 
School administration 4,548,671 (4,548,671) (4,548,671) 
Bw;iness I ,832,940 (I ,832,940) (I ,832,940) 
Operation and maintenance offucilities 6,948,237 (6,948,237) (6,948,237) 
Transportation 4,418,188 102,260 2,768,399 (1,547,529) (I ,547,529) 
Non K- 12 instructional services 1,914,300 99,324 1,206,288 (608,688) (608,688) 
C ommlU1ity servJCes 1,621,274 178,041 (1,443,233) (1,443,233) 

Student activities 3,382,584 2,936,046 549,605 103,067 103,067 
School tood services 4,747,594 I, 186,833 3,434,677 (126,084) (126,084) 
F acilines acq uisition1construction'operation 2,762,220 111,212 (2,651 ,008) (2,651 ,008) 
Interest and fiscal charb>es on long-tenn 
liabilities 2,216,573 (2,216,573) (2,216,573) 

Total governmental activities 86,113,218 7,075,544 23,837,262 114,144 (55,086,268) _(55,086,268) 
Busmess-type activities: 

Municipal Building Authority 214,888 214,000 128,236 127,348 127,348 
Total pmnary government 86,328,106 7,289,544 23,965,498 114,144 _(55,086,268) 127,348 (54,958,920) 

Component unit 

Box Elder School District FolU1dation 47,764 ~152 

General revenues: 
Property taxes levied for: 

Basic rate 5,362,085 5,362,085 

Voted leeway 2,085,894 2,085,894 

Board local leeway 6,587,264 6,587,264 
Debt service 7,380,536 7,380,536 
Capital outlay 8,740,838 8,740,838 

Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 30,841,645 30,841,645 

Earnings on investments 667,019 667,019 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 32,769 32,769 

Total general revenues 61,698,050 61,698,050 

Chanb>e in net position 6,611,782 127,348 6,739,130 

Net position- be6>inning of year- as restated I II ,812,887 468,049 112,280,936 

Net position- end of year $ 118,424,669 $ 595,397 $ 119,020,066 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2014 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables: 

Taxes 
Account 
Intergovernmental 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Deposits 
Inventory 

Total Assets 

Liabilities, deterred inflows of resources and fimd balances: 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Contracts and retainage payble 
Deposits payable 
Due to clubs 
Accrued salaries and benefits 
Unearned revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Deterred JnJiows ofResouces: 

Unearned property taxes 

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows ofResources 

Fund Balances: 
Non-spendable: 

Inventories 
Restricted: 

State programs 
Debt service 
Other programs 

Committed: 
Capital projects-BEHS natatoriunJ 

Assigned: 
Capita! projects 
Non-major special revenue fiuxls 
Other purposes 

Unassigned 

Total Ftmd Balance 

Total Liabilities. Deterred Inflows ofResources. and 
F told Balance 

Major Funds 

General Debt Service 

$ 8,885,430 $ 4,448,800 
5,980,458 

13,528,658 6,592.050 
49,573 

1,431,546 

70,000 5,496,738 

$29,945,665 $ 16,537,588 

$ 551,201 $ 

1,401,375 

3,811,796 
1,164,202 608,619 

6,928,574 608,619 

13,528,658 6,592,050 

20,457,232 7,200,669 

2,031,778 

9,336,919 

4,534.90 I 
2,921.754 

9.488.433 9.336.919 

$ 29.945.665 $ 16.53 7.588 

Capital 
Projects 

$20,210,731 

9.818,233 

7,503,843 

136 

$37,532,943 

$ 801,358 
108,131 

723,678 

1,633,167 

7,503,843 

9,137,010 

3,805,661 

800.000 

23.790.272 

28.395.933 

$37.532.943 $ 

Other 
Govemmental 

Funds 

$ 2,526.852 

2,411 
365,515 

119,600 
$ 3,014,378 

$ 74,884 

1,247,876 
74,966 

1,397,726 

1,397,726 

119,600 

1.497.052 

1.616.652 

3.014.378 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 36,071,813 
15,798,691 

27,624,551 
52,120 

1,797,061 

5,566,738 
119,600 

$ 87,030,574 

$ 1,427,443 
108,131 

1,401,375 
1,247,876 
3,886,762 
2,496,499 

10,568,086 

27,624,551 

38,192,637 

119,600 

5,837,439 
9,336,919 

800,000 

23,790,272 
1.497,052 
4,534,901 

2.921,754 

48.837.937 

87,030,574 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TOTHESTATEMENTOFNETPOSTION 
JUNE 30, 2014 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different 

because: 

Total fimd balance - governmental fimds 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefure, are 

not reported in the fimds. The cost of the assets is $188,214,014 and the accumulated 

depreciation is $(61,673,758). 

Property tax revenue is recognized when earned (claim to resources established) rather than 

when available. A portion of the deferred property tax revenue is not available. 

Cash and deposits payable are offSet in the governmental wide financial statements but 

reported in the fimd financial statements because the transactions are between two difierent 

fimds. $1 ,027, 706 was eliminated from cash and cash equivalents and deposits payable for 

the government wide financial statements because the Student Activities Fund reported the 

investment held by the District as cash and cash equivalents in the fimd financial statements 

and the General Fund reported a corresponding deposits payable. 

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefure are not reported 

in the fimds. Those liabilities consist of: 

Bonds payable 
Bond premium 
Termination benefits 
Compensated absences 
Accrued interest on bonds 
Capital lease payable 

Total net position - governmental activities 

$ (49,490,000) 
( 1 ,952,326) 
(6,51 0,236) 

(338,374) 
{1,015,998) 

(143,089) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
17 

$ 48,837,937 

126,540,256 

2,496,499 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT I 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

I FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

Major Funds Other I Governmental Total Governmental 
General Debt Service Capital Projects Funds Funds 

Revenues: I Property taxes $ 14,841,724 $ 7,758,929 $ 9,225,737 $ $ 31,826,390 

Charges for services 2,157,204 111,212 4,122,879 6,391,295 

Other programs and grants 169,064 169,064 

I Contnbutions 549,605 549,605 

Earnings on investments 143,191 28,388 155,204 13,119 339,902 

State aid 46,744,295 731,076 47,475,371 

Federal aid 4,579,658 2,390,933 6,970,591 

I Total revenues 68,635,136 7,787,317 9,492,153 7,807,612 93,722,218 

Expenditures: 

I Current: 
Instructional services 43,400,984 43,400,984 

Supporting services: 
Students 2,154,959 2,154,959 

I Instructional staff 1,445,294 1,445,294 

General administration 590,357 590,357 

School administration 4,262,154 4,262,154 

Business 1,785,795 1,785,795 I Operation and maintenance offucilities 6,483,578 6,483,578 

Student transportation 4,082,124 4,082,124 

Student activities 3,382,584 3,382,584 

Non K -12 instructional services 1,884,739 1,884,739 I Commwlity services 1,622,045 1,622,045 

School food services 4,149,363 4,149,363 

Facilities acqui<iitionlconstruction 9,085,149 9,085,149 

I Debt service: 
Principal retirement 4,260,000 4,260,000 

Interest and fiscal charges 2,277,856 2,277,856 

Other I Total expenditures 67,712,029 6,537,856 9,085,149 7,531,947 90,866,981 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 
over (under) expenditures 923,107 1,249,461 407,004 275,665 2,855,237 

I Other financing sources (uses): 
Sale of fixed assets 71,147 71,147 

Proceeds fi-om issuance of capital lease I Operating transfers in 188,470 188,470 

Operating transfers out ( 188,470) (188,470) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 188A70 71,147 ( 188,470) 71,147 

I Net change in fi01d balances 1,111,577 1,249,461 478,151 87,195 2,926,384 

Ft01d balances - beginning 8,376,856 8,087,458 27,917,782 I ,529.457 45,911,553 

Fw1d balances - endu1g $ 9,488,433 $ 9,336,919 $ 28,395,933 $ I ,616,652 $ 48,837,937 I 
I 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. I 18 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: 

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, assets with an 

initia~ individual cost of more than $5,000 are capitalized and the cost is allocated over their estimated useful lives 

and reported as depreciation expense. Also, in the Governmental funds proceeds from sale of capital assets is 

recorded as revenue, whereas in the statement of activities, capital asset sale proceeds are netted against the cost 

of the capital assets and the accumulated depreciation. Below are the changes for 2014: 

Capital outlays 

Depreciation expense 

Gain on sale of capital assets 

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 

$ 6,322,929 
(5,569,897) 

32,769 
(71 '147) 

Property tax revenues received prior to the year for which they are being levied are reported as unearned revenue 

in the governmental funds. However, they are recorded as revenue in the statement of activities. Deterred 

property tax revenues decreased during the year. 

In the statement of activities, commodities received are recognized as revenue and commodities used as an 

expense. The amount received and expensed during 2014 was $312,668. 

Accrued interest on long-term debt reported in the statement of activities does not require the use of current 

financial resources and therefore is not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. This is the current year 

change in the liability, reported as a decrease in interest expense in the statement of activities. 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, 

while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental 

funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of 

premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and 

amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment oflong­

term debt and related items. During 2013, they consist of the following: 

Bond principal payments 
Capital lease payments 

Amortization of bond premiw11 

$ 4,260,000 
68,194 

327,117 

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, such as compensated absences and tennination benefits, 

are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, expenditures for these items are 

measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts actually paid). During 2014, 

$ 2,926,384 

714,654 

(1,669,772) 

61,283 

4,655,311 

compensated absences payable increased by $51,634 and termination benefits payable increased by $24,444. (76,078) 

Changes in net position of governmental activities $ 6,611,782 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT I 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL I GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

Variance with I 
Final Budget-

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 

I Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Property taxes $ 14,278,343 $ 14,393,256 $ 14,841,724 $ 448,468 

I Charges for services 2,019,500 1,984,287 2,157,204 172,917 

Other programs and grants 500 500 169,064 168,564 

Earnings on investments 180,000 181,300 143,191 (38, I 09) 

Contnbutions I State aid 45,684,584 47,850,635 46,744,295 (I, I 06,340) 

Federal aid 3,954,000 4,554,000 4,579,658 25,658 

Total revenues 66,116,927 68,963,978 68,635,136 (328,842) I 
Expenditures: 

Current: 

I Instructional services 44,105,357 45,181,398 43,400,984 1,780,414 

Supporting services: 

Students 2,223,898 2,105,242 2,154,959 (49,717) 

Instructional staff 1,462,956 1,464,961 1,445,294 19,667 I General administration 627,784 607,741 590,357 17,384 

School administration 4,318,728 4,343,976 4,262,154 81,822 

Business!PersonneVIT 1,592,072 1,675,827 1,785,795 (109,968) I Operation and maintenance offucilities 6,653,007 6,592,014 6,483,578 108,436 

Student transportation 4,426,392 4,218,621 4,082,124 136,497 

Non K- 12 instructional services 1,843,794 1,884,739 (40,945) I Community services 1,964,527 1,682,967 1,622,045 60,922 

Total expenditures 67,374,721 69,716,541 67,712,029 2,004,512 

Excess of revenues over expenditures (1,257,794) (752,563) 923,107 1,675,670 I 
Other financing sources (uses): 

Proceeds from capital lease 

I Other financing sources 1.095,000 

Transfer in 188,470 188,470 

Transfer out 

I Total other tlnancing sources (uses) 1.095,000 188.470 188.470 

Net change in fund balances (162.794) (752.563) 1.111.577 1.864.140 

I Fund balances - beginning 8.376.856 8.376.856 8.376.856 

Fund balances - ending $ 8.214.062 $ 7,624.293 $ 9.488.433 $ 1.864.140 

I 
I 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. I 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
JUNE 30, 2014 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables: 

Accotmts 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Capital assets: 

Land, construction in progress, and water stock 
Buildings, net of depreciation 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued interest 
N onctnTent liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

Net Position: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Major Enterprise Fund 
Municipal Building 

Authority Fund 

$ 309,699 

$ 

88 

2,857,610 

3,167,397 

214,000 
2,358,000 

2,572,000 

595,397 

595,397 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
21 



BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

Operating revenues: 

Charges for sales and services: 

Lease revenue 

Other services 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 

Municipal Building Authority management 

Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 

Intergovernmental 

Investrrent earnings 

Interest and fiscal charges 

Bond issuance costs amortization 

Gain (Loss) on sale of fixed assets 

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 

Income before contributions and transfers 

Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Change in net position 

Total net position- beginning 

Total net position- ending 

Business-type 

Enterprise 

Fund­

Municipal 

Building 

Authority 

$ 214,000 

214,000 

74,223 

74,223 

139,777 

128,236 

(140,665) 

(12,429) 

127,348 

127,348 

468,049 

$ 595,397 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from interfund lease offucilities 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Other receipts 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FrNANCING ACTIVITIES 

Transrer out to other funds 
Net cash used by noncapital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCrNG 
ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of capital assets 
Intergovernmental Build America Bonds interest subsidy 
Principal payments on lease revenue bonds 
Interest paid on lease revenue bonds 
Fiscal charges paid on lease revenue bonds 

Net cash provided (used) from capital and related financing 
activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest received 

Net cash provided from investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents end of year 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization expense 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

AccoLultS receivable 
Accow1ts payable 
Accrued payroll liabilities 
Obligation for compensated absences 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Business- type 
Enterprise Fund 

Municipal Building 
Authority 

214,000 

214,000 

128,236 
(214,000) 
(138, 166) 

(2,500) 

(226,430) 

( 12,430) 

322,217 

309,787 

139,777 

74,223 

214,000 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

AGENCY FUND 
JUNE 30, 2014 

Agency 

Flilld 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables-accolU1ts 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

AccolU1ts payable 

Accrued salaries and benefits 

Intergovernmental payable 

Total liabilities 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

49,420 

26,286 

75,706 

8,520 

2,993 

64,193 
75,706 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST A TMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Box Elder School District is located in the north-central and north-western portion of the 
State of Utah. It was organized by State Statute and serves the citizens of Box Elder 
County. The District provides educational and related services. 

The financial statements of Box Elder School District have been prepared in confonnity 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The 
more significant of the District's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The accompanying financial statements include the School District, which is a 
political subdivision with corporate powers created under Utah State law, and its 
blended component unit, the Municipal Building Authority of Box Elder School 
District, collectively referred to as the financial reporting entity. As required by 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), these financial statements 
present Box Elder School District (referred to as the "primary government" for 
reporting purposes) and its' "component units" (separate legal entities for which 
the District is considered to be financially accountable). Box Elder School 
District Foundation is a discrete component unit, although a legally separate 
entity of Box Elder School District. 

The Municipal Building Authority of Box Elder School District is governed by a 
seven-member board which is the Board of Education. Its sole purpose is to 
finance and construct the District's public facilities. The financial statements of 
the Municipal Building Authority of Box Elder School District are included in 
the accompanying financial statements as a blended component unit. 

Box Elder School District Foundation is a separate but affiliated, self-sustaining, 
not-for-profit organization. The Foundation was established to provide support 
for the Box Elder School District, its faculty and students, and to promote, 
sponsor and carry out educational, scientific, charitable and related activities and 
objectives within the Box Elder School District. It is governed by a board of 
directors of up to 15 individuals. The Foundation is considered to be a 
component unit of the District because the purpose of the Foundation is to 
exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefit the District by soliciting contributions 
and managing the funds. The Foundation has an audit performed annually, 
separate from the District. A copy ofthat audit report can be obtained by writing 
to the Box Elder District Foundation, 960 South Main, Brigham City, Utah 
84302. 
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NOTE 1. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

c. 

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide 
financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the 
District. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally 
are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent 
on fees charged to external parties for goods or services. 

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset 
by program revenues directly connected with the function program. A 
function is an assembly of similar activities and my include portions of a 
fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and 
program revenues associated with the district function activity. Program 
revenues include 1) charges for services that report fees, tuition, rent, and 
other charges to users of the District's services; 2) operating grants and 
contributions that finance annual operating activities; and 3) capital grants 
and contributions that fund the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation 
of capital assets. These revenues are subject to externally imposed 
restrictions to these program users. Taxes and other revenue sources not 
properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues. 
Administrative overhead charges are included in direct expenses. 

Fund Financial Statements. Separate financial statements are provided 
for governmental funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are 
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major 
individual governmental funds are reported in separate columns in the 
fund financial statements. The remaining governmental funds are 
combined into a single column and reported as other nonmajor funds. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 
Presentation 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses 
are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. 
Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made. 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. 
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NOTE 1. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 
Presentation (continued) 

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide 
financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

The use of financial resources to acquire capital assets are capitalized as 
assets in the government-wide financial statements, rather than reported as 
an expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as a liability in 
the government-wide financial statements, rather than as another financing 
source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term debt are reported as a reduction 
of the related liability, rather than as an expenditure in the government­
wide financial statements. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental fund 
financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and 
available. "Measurable" means that amounts can be reasonably 
determined within the current period. Revenues are considered to be 
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, 
the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 
60 days ofthe end of the current fiscal period. 

Property taxes are recorded when levied. Property taxes which have not 
been collected within 60 days, and therefore do not meet the "available" 
criterion, are reported as deferred revenue until collected. Anticipated 
refunds of such taxes are recorded as liabilities and reductions of revenue 
when they are measurable and their validity seems certain. 

Minimum school program revenues and other revenues from the Utah 
State Office of Education are considered "measurable" and recognized as 
revenue when available and remitted to the District in time to be used to 
pay current obligations. Grant revenue is recognized when qualified 
expenditures are incurred and a contractual claim exists with the grantor 
agency. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the District. 
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NOTE 1. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 
Presentation (continued) 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under 
accrual accounting. Exceptions to this general rule include principal and 
interest on long-term debt as well as expenditures related to compensated 
absences, termination benefits and arbitrage rebates which are recognized 
only when payment is due. 

The District reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - This fund accounts for all activities not accounted for by 
other funds of the District and is the principal fund. The main sources of 
revenue for this fund are property taxes and minimum school programs 
funded by the Utah State office of Education. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for specific 
revenue sources that are legally restricted to debt service expenditures for 
specific purposes. 

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for 
financial resources to be used for the acquisition, construction, or 
maintenance of major capital projects. 

The District's nonmajor governmental funds include three special revenue 
funds. The nonmajor special revenue funds account for specific revenue 
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. Proprietary funds include 
enterprise funds. Enterprise funds report the activities for which a fee is 
charged to external users for goods or services. The financial statements 
of the proprietary funds are reported similar to the government-wide 
financial statements in that they both use the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
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NOTE 1. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 
Presentation (continued) 

Proprietary funds distinguish between operating and nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. · Operating revenues and expenses result from 
providing goods and services relating to the primary operations of the 
proprietary fund. Other revenues and expenses are reported as 
nonoperating. 

The Municipal Building Authority (MBA) of Box Elder School District is 
the only proprietary fund reported in the financial statements. The MBA 
Fund accounts for the activity and operations of leasing and constructing 
public facilities. 

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The District has one fiduciary 
fund - Agency Fund. Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by 
the District as an agent for other governments, private organizations, or 
individuals. Agency Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of 
accounting, but due to their custodial nature (assets equal liabilities) do not 
present results of operations or have a measurement focus. 

D. Budgets 

Budgets are legally adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for funds. 
All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Budgets are presented 
on the modified accrual basis of accounting for governmental funds. 
Budgets are not adopted on a District level for the Box Elder School 
District Foundation, which is presented as a discretely presented 
component unit in the financial statements. 

The district operates within the budget requirements as specified by State law. The 
financial reports reflect the following budgetary standards. 

1. In May of each year, the District management submits to the Board a 
proposed operating budget for the next fiscal year commencing July I. 
This budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing 
them. A final budget for the current year, ending June 301

h, is also 
included. 

2. The tentative budget is made available for public inspection at least ten 
days prior to a public hearing on adoption of the final budget. 
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NOTE 1. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

D. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

Budgets (continued) 

If the budget does not propose to exceed the certified tax rate, a public 
hearing for taxpayer input is held prior to June 22nd of each year. The 
budget is then legally adopted by resolution of the Board. If the budget 
proposes a tax rate that exceeds the certified tax rate, the budget IS 

formally adopted in August, when data is available to set new rates. 

Once adopted, the budget can be amended by subsequent Board action. 
Reductions in appropriations can be approved by the Board, but increased 
appropriations in the governmental funds require a public hearing prior to 
amending the budget. Budgets may be increased provided that notice of 
such action is published seven days before the meeting. The budgetary 
information presented includes the original budget and the final amended 
budget. 

Minor interim adjustments in estimated revenue and appropriations during 
the year ended June 30, 2014, have been included in the final budget 
approved by the Board, as presented in the financial statements. 

Encumbrance accounting is employed in the governmental funds. 
Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders and contracts) outstanding at year 
end are reported as a designation to the fund balances and do not 
constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be re­
appropriated and honored during the subsequent year. 

As determined by State law, the level for which expenditures may not 
legally exceed appropriations is the total budget of a given fund. 

Negative variances in total revenues and positive variances in total 
expenditures are largely a result of federal and state program revenues and 
related expenditures that do not have a direct impact on fund balance. 
Budgets generally assume expenditure of all available resources. 
Therefore, when the budget is prepared, it is assumed that these funds will 
not have a carryover or revenue to a subsequent year. Some program 
revenues received, but not spent, are restricted and deferred to the 
subsequent fiscal year. 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

E. Deposits and Investments 

Unrestricted cash balances of all funds are combined to form a pool of 
cash and investments which is managed by the Business Administrator in 
accordance with the Utah Money Management Act. Income from the 
investment of pooled cash is allocated based upon each fund's portion of 
the pool. Restricted cash consists of that portion of pooled cash that is 
restricted for a specific use due to constraints imposed by external parties 
or enabling legislation, or is cash held in trust in compliance with bond 
covenants, terms and conditions. Restricted cash is held in the capital 
project account because the funds are restricted for the purpose of building 
or remodeling instructional facilities. When both restricted and 
unrestricted sources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Investments are recorded at fair value based upon quoted market prices as 
of year end, except where there is no material difference between cost and 
fair value. The difference between the purchase price and market price 
when material is recorded as interest income. 

A statement of cash flows is presented for proprietary funds under the 
direct method. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District 
considers cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with 
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition, 
including investments in the Utah Public Treasurer's Investment Fund 
(PTIF) to be cash and cash equivalents. 

F. Interfund transactions 

Interfund transactions represent transactions between different funds 
within the District. In general, interfund activity has been eliminated from 
the government-wide financial statements in an effort to minimize the 
doubling-up of revenues and expenses resulting from such transactions. 
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NOTE 1. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

G. Capital Assets 

Capital assets include land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, 
leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment, vehicles and 
construction in progress. These assets are reported in the government­
wide financial statements in the relevant column on the Statement of Net 
Position under governmental activities. Capital assets acquired by 
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund 
financial statements. The capitalization threshold for personal property is 
defined to be assets with a useful life of at least one year and costing at 
least $5,000; real property thresholds vary by type of asset, but are 
generally established at the same amount. Assets purchased or 
constructed are generally recorded at cost. If precise cost is not available, 
the asset is recorded at estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets 
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. The cost 
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of an asset 
or materially extend asset's lives are not capitalized. 

When constructing capital assets, interest expense incurred relating to 
governmental activities is not capitalized. 

Land, water stock, and construction in progress are not depreciated. 
Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is charged to the various 
functional expenses in the government-wide Statement of Activities. 
Accumulated depreciation is reported on the government-wide Statement 
of Net Position. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives 
using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Buildings 
Improvements 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Compensated Absences 

It is the District's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned-but-not-used 
vacation benefits in accordance with negotiated agreements. The District has 
placed a cap on the amount of accumulated vacation benefits that will be 
compensated. The cap depends on employee classification and is limited to 10 
days for classified employees, 15 days for administrators working under 229 day 
contracts and 20 days for administrators working under 243 day contracts. An 
estimate of vacation pay plus related payroll taxes is accrued when incurred in 
government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds and reported as a 
liability. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only 
if benefits have matured as a result of employee resignations and retirements. 

Long-term liabilities 

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term 
obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position. Bond 
premiums and discounts, defeasance costs, (the difference between the carrying 
amount of the defeased debt and its reacquisition price in bond refunding), are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method, 
which approximates the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs are 
expensed as incurred as directed in GASB 65. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums 
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face 
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received 
on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 

Net Position/Fund Balances 

The difference between assets and liabilities is "Net Position" on the government­
wide and "Fund Balance" on the governmental fund financial statements. Net 
position is divided into invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted 
non-spendable, restricted expendable, and unrestricted. Net position is reported 
as restricted when constraints are placed upon them by external parties or are 
imposed by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 



NOTE 1. 

J. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Net Position/Fund Balances (continued) 

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on 
classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to 
which the District is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for 
which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The 
classifications used in the governmental fund financials are as follows. 

Non-spendable - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent 
because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. The District has classified only school food 
service inventory as non-spendable. 

Restricted - This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been 
placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such 
as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 

Committed - This classification includes amounts that can be used only for 
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the School 
Board. These amounts cannot be used for any other purposes unless the School 
Board removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 
(ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially 
committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent 
that existing resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying 
those contractual requirements. 

Assigned - This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the 
District's intent to be used for specific purposes but are neither restricted or 
committed. This intent can be expressed by the School Board or the District 
Business Administrator. No other body or official has the authority to constrain 
such amounts. This classification also includes the remaining positive fund 
balance for all governmental funds except for the General Fund. 

Unassigned - This classification includes the residual fund balance for the 
General Fund. The unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund 
balance for any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by the 
offsetting of assigned fund balance amounts. 
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NOTE 1. 

J. 

K. 

L. 

M. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Net Position/Fund Balances (continued) 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to 
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, 
assigned or unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers amounts 
to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally 
unassigned funds, as needed. 

Inventories 

Inventories for the School Food Services Special Revenue Fund are valued at 
average cost utilizing the weighted average method. 

Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. To help 
manage these risks, the District participates in the Utah State Risk Management 
Fund, a public entity that operates like an insurance carrier. The District also 
participates in the Utah School Boards Risk Management Mutual Insurance 
Association to cover its workers compensation risks. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE2. 

NOTE3. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

PROPERTY TAX 

The property tax revenue of the District is collected and distributed by the Box 
Elder County Treasurer as an agent for the District. Utah statutes establish the 
process by which taxes are levied and collected. Property taxes attach as an 
enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on June 15 and are 
due November 30. Property tax revenue received by the District includes 
uncollected taxes (including delinquencies and accrued interest and penalties). It 
is expected that delinquent property taxes will be collected within a five year 
period, after which time, the County Treasurer may force sale of property to 
collect the delinquent portion. These property tax revenues are not recognized 
when levied because they are not expected to be collected within 60 days after the 
end of the current year. The property taxes levied for 2014 have been included in 
the taxes receivable and unearned property tax liability for the governmental fund 
presentation. These have been adjusted for the government-wide presentation. 

An annual uniform fee based on the age of motor vehicles is levied in lieu of ad 
valorem tax (property tax) on motor vehicles that is due each time a vehicle is 
registered. Revenues collected in each county from motor vehicle fees is 
distributed by the county to each taxing entity in which the motor vehicle is 
located in the same proportion in which revenue from ad valorem property tax is 
distributed. The District recognizes motor vehicle fees as property tax revenue 
when collected by the county. 

RECEIVABLES 

Receivables at June 30, 2014, consist ofthe following: 

Taxes Accounts I ntergovemmental Total 
Governmental funds: 
General Fund $13,528,658 $ 49,573 $ 1,431,546 $ 15,009,777 

Debt Service Fund 6,592,050 6,592,050 

Capital Projects Fund 7,503,843 136 7,503,979 
Nonmajor Funds 2,411 365,515 367,926 
Total receivables $27,624,551 $ 52,120 $ I ,797,061 $ 29,473,732 

No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided because the District 
believes that all accounts receivable are collectible. 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

NOTE 4. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows: 
Beginning 
Balance Additions Deletions Transfers Ending Balance 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 10,626,715 $ 587,072 $ $ $ 11,213,787 
Construction in progress 1,380,910 4,261,373 (3,859,826) 1,782,457 
Water stock 75,000 75,000 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 12,082,625 4,848,445 (3,859,826) 13,071,244 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 153,268,835 3,808,232 (58,918) (14,206) 157,003,943 
Furniture, machinery and equipment and vehicles 17,222,473 1,526,078 (623,930) 14,206 18,138,827 

Total capital assets being depreciated 170,491,308 5,334,310 (682,848) 175,142,770 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Buildings and improvements (45, 168,496) (4,267,651) 34,251 (49,401,896) 
Furniture, machinery and equipment and vehicles (11,579,835) (I ,302,246) 610,219 (12,271,862) 

Total accumulated depreciation (56, 748,331) (5,569,897) 644,470 (61,673,758) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 113,742,977 (235,587) (38,378) 113,469,012 

Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 125,825,602 $ 4,612,858 $ (3,898,204) $ $ 126,540,256 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 2,968,945 $ $ $ $ 2,968,945 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,968,945 2,968,945 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Buildings and improvements 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Buildings and improvements (37,112) (74,223) (111,335) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net (37,112) (74,223) (111,335) 

Business-type activity capital assets, net $ 2,931,833 $ (74,223) $ $ $ 2,857,610 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Instruction $ 3.901.035 
Support services: 

General administration 65.726 
School administration 383.374 

Business 55.975 
Operations/Maintenance of plant 475.001 
Student transportation 340.594 

Community services 335.865 
School food services 12.327 

Total depreciation expense - govemmental activities $ 5.569.897 

Business- type activities: 
Municipal Building Authority $ 74.223 
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NOTE4. 

NOTES. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

The District has construction commitments for the construction projects for re­
modeling at Bear River Natatorium and Box Elder Natatorium. Funds have been 
restricted or assigned in Capital Project Fund for these commitments. 

RETIREMENT PLANS 

Defined Benefit Plans- Box Elder School District contributes to the State and 
School Contributory Retirement System Tier 1 and 2 and State and School 
Noncontributory Retirement System for employers with Social Security coverage 
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the 
Utah Retirement Systems (Systems). Utah Retirement Systems provide refunds, 
retirement benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan 
members and beneficiaries in accordance with retirement statutes. 

The Systems are established and governed by the respective sections of Chapter 
49 of the Utah code Annotated 1953 as amended. The Utah State Retirement 
Office Act in Chapter 49 provides for the administration of the Utah Retirement 
Systems and Plans under the direction of the Utah State Retirement Board (Board) 
whose members are appointed by the Governor. The Systems issue a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the State and Schools Contributory Retirement 
System and State and Schools Noncontributory Retirement System for employers 
with Social Security coverage. A copy of the report may be obtained by writing 
to the Utah Retirement Systems, 540 East 200 South, Salt Lake City, UT 841 02 or 
by calling 1 (800) 365-8772. 

Funding Policy- Plan members in the State and Schools Contributory Retirement 
System Tier 1 are required to contribute 6.00% of their annual covered salary (5% 
paid by the employer for the employee) and Box Elder School District is required 
to contribute 15.97% of their annual covered salary. In the State and Schools 
Contributory Retirement System Tier 2 there are no employee contributions and 
the School District contributes 16.75% of eligible salary. In the State and Schools 
Noncontributory Retirement System, Box Elder School District is required to 
contribute 20.46% of their annual covered salary. The contribution rates are the 
actuarially determined rates. The contribution requirements of the systems are 
authorized by statute and specified by the Board. 
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NOTES. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

Box Elder School District's contributions to the State and Schools Contributory 
Retirement System Tier 1 and 2 for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 
2012, were $265,309, $177,523, and $143,703, respectively; and for the State and 
Schools Noncontributory Retirement System the contributions for June 30, 2014 
2013 and 2012 were $7,251,441, $6,751,930, and $6,260,518 respectively. The 
contributions were equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Defined Contribution Plans- The District also participates in the Utah 
Retirement System 401(k) plan. The District funds 1.5% of eligible payroll cost. 
Vesting is immediate. The District contributed $1,383,550 in 2014 and employee 
contributions were $566,93 7. 

The District also participates in the Educators Mutual Insurance association 
401 (k) plan. The District funds 1.5% of eligible payroll costs. Vesting is 
immediate. The District contributed $11 ,204 in 2014 and employee contributions 
were $10,076. 

The District also offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue code Sections 457 and 403(b ). The plans, 
available to all full-time employees, permit them to defer a portion of their salary 
until future years. Employees are eligible to voluntarily participate from the date 
of employment and are vested immediately upon participating. Employee 
contributions to the Section 457 plan totaled $17,430 for 2014. This plan is 
administered by the Utah Retirement Systems. Employee contributions to the 
Section 403(b) plan totaled $297,506. This plan is administered by National 
Benefits, a third party administrator. 
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NOTE 6. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The District had the following long-term obligations at June 30, 2014. 

The District patrons approved the issuance of up to $70 million in general 
obligation bonds in fiscal year 2008. The Board decided to spend the funds for 
the construction of improvements at the two high schools and the construction of 
potential elementary schools in areas with significant need. On September 10, 
2008, $25 million of the approved bonds were issued. The District received a 
bond premium of $597,277 and paid bond issuance costs of $266,475, including 
an underwriter's discount of $170,000. The bond premium is being amortized 
over the 20 year life of the bonds. Principal and interest payments began July 15, 
2009 and end July 15, 2028. The interest rate on the bonds ranges from 3%-5%. 
The following is a debt service schedule in five year increments over the life of 
the bonds. 

2008 General Obligation School Building Bonds: 

Years Principal Interest Total Interest Rate 
2015 $ 875,000 $ 772,488 $ 1,647,488 3.50% 
2016 900,000 739,175 1,639,175 3.50% 
2017 950,000 702,175 1,652,175 4.00% 
20I8 975,000 663,675 1,638,675 4.00% 
20I9 I,025,000 622,394 I,647,394 4.00% 

2020-2024 5,800,000 2,332,03 I 8,132,03 I 4.00%-5.00% 
2025-2029 7,275,000 832,625 8,107,625 4.25%-5.00% 

$ 17,800,000 $ 6,664,563 $ 24,464,563 

On July I, 2009, $31 million of the approved bonds were issued. The District 
received a bond premium of $618,633 and paid bond issuance costs of $292,077, 
including an underwriter's discount of $202,387. The bond premium is being 
amortized over the 20 year life of the bonds. Principal and interest payments 
began January 15, 20IO and end January 15,2029. The interest rate on the bonds 
ranges from 3%-5%. The following is a debt service schedule in five year 
increments over the life of the bonds. 
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NOTE6. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

2009 General Obligation School Building Bonds: 

Years Principal Interest 

2015 $ 925,000 $ 8,552,375 $ 

2016 950,000 814,874 

2017 1,000,000 795,875 

2018 1,025,000 735,375 

2019 1,075,000 693,375 

2020-2024 6,050,000 2,754,797 

2025-2029 7,475,000 1,280,234 

2030 1,700,000 40,375 

$ 20,200,000 $15,667,280 $ 

Total Interest Rate 
9,477,375 3.00% 
1,764,874 3.00% 
1,795,875 4.00% 

1,760,375 4.00% 

1,768,375 4.00%-4.25% 

8,804,797 4.00%-4.25% 

8,755,234 4.00%-4.50% 
1,740,375 4.75% 

35,867,280 

On November 23, 2011, $14 mill ion of the approved bonds were issued. The District 
received a bond premium of $1,864,249 and paid bond issuance costs of $113,462, 
including an underwriter's discount of $47,419. The bond premium is being amortized 
over the 7 year life of the bonds. Principal and interest payments began July 15, 2012 
and end July 15, 2018. The interest rate on the bonds ranges from 3%-5%. The 
following is a debt service schedule in five year increments over the life of the bonds. 

2011 General Obligation School Building Bonds: 

Years Principal Interest Total Interest Rate 
2015 $ 2,595,000 $ 492,900 $ 3,087,900 4.00% 
2016 2,710,000 373,250 3,083,250 5.00% 
2017 2,825,000 234,875 3,059,875 5.00% 
2018 2,985,000 89,625 3,074,625 5.00% 
2019 375,000 7,500 382,500 4.00% 

$ 11,490,000 $ 1,198,150 $ 12,688,150 

The Municipal Building Authority of Box Elder School District (MBA), a blended 
component unit of Box Elder School District, entered into agreements to issue Qualified 
School Construction Bonds in the amount of $3,000,000, for the construction of new 
school. The bonds were issued on June 2, 20 II, and are payable May 15, 2026. The 
District has entered into a master lease agreement with the MBA, dated June 2, 20 II, 
which requires the District to lease the school facility from the MBA through May 16, 
2026. The lease amount is equal to the annual debt service plus $1 for each fiscal year 
the lease is in force. The lease provides for a purchase price, which may be exercised by 
the District anytime during the period of the lease, equivalent to the outstanding principal 
balance on the lease revenue bonds. The bond interest rate is 4.96% for the length of the 
bond. However, the annual interest amount of approximately $148,800 will be 
subsidized by the U.S. Government resulting in no annual cost to the District. 
The following is debt service schedule ofthe bonds. 
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NOTE6. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

2011 Municipal Building Authority Qualified School Construction Bonds: 

Year Principal Interest Subsidized interest Total Interest Rate 

2015 $ 214,000 $ 127,571 $ (114,814) $ 226,757 4.96% 
2016 $ 214,000 $ 116,957 $ (105,261) $ 225,696 4.96% 
2017 $ 214,000 $ 106,342 $ (106,342) $ 214,000 4.96% 
2018 $ 214,000 $ 95,728 $ (95,728) $ 214,000 4.96% 
2019 $ 214,000 $ 85,114 $ (85,114) $ 214,000 4.96% 

2020-2024 $ 1,072,000 $ 266,302 $ (266,302) $ 1,072,000 4.96% 
2025-2026 $ 430,000 $ 31,992 $ (31,992) $ 430,000 4.96% 

$ 2,572,000 $ 830,006 $ (805,553) $ 2,596,453 

Effective July 1, 2006, the Board approved a termination benefit plan, which, 
upon termination, provides for the payout of sick leave benefits and a retirement 
bonus. During the year ended June 30, 2014, $1,450,492 was expended on these 
benefit plans. The plan is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The District has a 
potential for termination benefits for 396 eligible employees. For 2014, the 
District has recorded a liability of $6,510,236, which is calculated at the net 
present value of the estimated liability. 

Termination Benefits 

Sick Leave Benefit: 
Employees are eligible after they have completed 15 years of contracted service 
with the District - employees receive 2% of their unused, accumulated sick leave 
for each year of service in the District, plus 1% per year for each year of 
experience granted by the District upon employment, to a maximum of 60%. 

Retirement Bonus: 
Employees are eligible after they qualify for School District Retirement, as 
defined in Policy 3306, 3-3-1 -employees receive a retirement bonus generated at 
30% per year of full-time contracted employment in the District, multiplied by the 
value of the weighted pupil unit for the year of retirement with an amount not to 
exceed nine times the value of the weighted pupil unit for the year of retirement. 
For classified employees who are eligible and Jess than fulltime employees, the 
percentages are lower. 
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NOTE6. 

NOTE7. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

Compensated Absences 

Classified and Administrative employees are eligible for vacation benefits. 
Classified employees may carry over a maximum of 20 days vacation to the 
following year but upon termination will only be compensated for up to 1 0 days at 
the rate in effect at the time of termination. Administrative employees who are 
under contract for 229 working days may be compensated for up to 15 days and 
administrative employees under contract for 243 or more working days may be 
compensated for up to 20 days. 

Capital Lease 

The remaining long-term obligation is a capital lease entered into with DeLage 
Landen Public Finance for the purchase of computer equipment. See note 1 0 for 
additional information. Transactions affecting long-term obligations are as 
follows: 

Begirming Ending Due Within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Govemrrental activities: 
G.O. bonds payable $ 53,750,000 $ $ ( 4,260,000) $49,490,000 $ 4,395,000 
G.O. bond premium 2,279,443 (327, 117) 1,952,326 
Capital lease payable 211,283 (68,194) 143,089 
Compensated absences 286,740 380,442 (328,808) 338,374 
Accrued termination 
benefits 6,485,792 1,450,492 (I ,426,048) 6,510,236 

Total Governmental Activities $ 63,013,258 $ 1,830,934 $ (6,41 0, 167) $58,434,025 $ 4,395,000 

Business-type activities: 
Bonds payable $ 2.786,000 $ - $ (214,000) 2,572,000 $ 214.000 

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNT ABILITY 

For the year ended June 30, 2014, no funds had expenditures in excess of the 
approved final budget. 

No funds had deficit fund balances at June 30, 2014. 
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NOTE 8. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The District maintains a Deposit and Investment Pool that is available for use by 
all funds of the District. Each fund type's portion of this pool is disclosed on the 
governmental funds balance sheet as "cash and cash equivalents". 

The District complies with the Utah Money Management Act (Utah Code Section 
51, Chapter 7) and related Rules of the Money management Council (Council) in 
handling its depository and investing transactions. District funds are deposited in 
qualified depositories as defined in the Act. The Act also authorizes the District 
to invest in the Utah Public Treasurers' Investment Fund (PTIF), certificates of 
deposit, US Treasury obligations, US agency issues, high-grade commercial 
paper, banker's acceptances, repurchase agreements, corporate bonds, money 
market funds and obligations of governmental agencies within the State of Utah. 
The Act and Council rules govern the financial reporting requirements of 
qualified depositories in which public funds may be deposited and prescribe the 
conditions under which the designation of a depository shall remain in effect. The 
District considers the rules of the Council to be necessary and sufficient adequate 
protection of its uninsured bank deposits. 

Deposits 

At June 30, 2014, the carrying amount ofthe District deposits was $3,369,125 and 
the bank balance was $5,998,392. Ofthe bank balance, $1,239,849 was covered 
by federal depository insurance. Deposits are not collateralized nor are they 
required to be by state stature. However, the State Commissioner of Financial 
Institutions monitors financial institutions and establishes limits for deposit of 
public money at individual financial institutions, and the District follows these 
recommendations. The Foundation had deposits of $77,713 with a bank balance 
of$88,996, all ofwhich was insured. 

Investments 

At June 30, 2014, the District's investment balances were as follows: 

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity Rated 
Corporate Bonds $ 15,336,922 less than I year A- to AAA 

Commercial paper/repurchase Jess than 270 

agreements days none 
Utah Public Treasurer's Investment 
Fund 32,495,958 N/A not rated 
Total $ 47,832,880 
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NOTES. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Investments (continued) 

At June 30, 2014, the Foundation's investment balances were as follows: 

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity 
Certificates of deposit $ 7,829 less than 1 year 
Utah Public Treasurer's Investment 
Fund 362,478 N/A not rated 

$ 370,307 

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will 
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The District manages its 
exposure to interest rate risk by complying with the Act, which requires that the 
remaining term to maturity of investments do not exceed the period of availability 
of the funds invested. The Act further limits the remaining term to maturity on all 
investments in commercial paper to 270 days or less and fixed-income securities 
to 365 days or less. The District has no investment policy that would further 
limit its interest rate risk. 

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an 
investment will not fulfill its obligations. The District's policy for reducing 
exposure to credit risk is to comply with the Act and other related rules. The Act 
and other related rules limit investments in commercial paper to a first tier rating 
of investments in fixed-income to a rating of A or higher as rated by Moody's 
Investor Service or by Standard and Poor's Corporation. The District has no 
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. All of the 
District's investments in corporate bonds and commercial paper meet this 
requirement with ratings of, at least, A or P-1. No one investment exceeds 5% of 
the total investment pool. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss 
attributed to the magnitude of the District's investment in a single issuer. The 
District's policy for managing this risk is to comply with the Act and related 
rules. The Act limits investments in commercial paper and or corporate 
obligations to 5% of the District" s total portfolio with a single issuer. At June 30, 
2014, the District had 32.4% of its' investments in Federal Home Loan Bank and 
45.6% in Freddie Mac. The District places no other limits on the amount it may 
invest in any one issuer. 
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NOTE 8. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, the custodial risk is the risk that in the 
event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the 
value of its investments that are in the possession of an outside party. The 
District's policy for managing this risk is to comply with the Act and related 
rules. The District places no other limit on the amount of investments to be held 
by counterparties. All of the District's investments in corporate bonds and 
commercial paper are uninsured and uncollateralized and held by the agent in the 
District's name. 

As reported in the financial statements: 
Government Wide: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted investments 

Component Unit: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Fiduciary Funds - cash and cash equivalents 

$ 35,815,574 
15,336,923 

88 

440,191 
7,829 

49,420 

$ 51,650,025 

The PTIF is an external deposit and investment pool wherein governmental 
entities are able to pool the monies from several entities to improve investment 
efficiency and yield. These monies are invested primarily in money market 
securities and contain no withdrawal restrictions. As such, the monies invested in 
this fund are not insured and are subject to the same market risks as any similar 
investment in money market funds. The Fund investments must comply with the 
provisions of the Utah Money Management Act. The Fund is not SEC registered 
and is unrated. Participant accounts with PTIF are not insured or otherwise 
guaranteed by the State of Utah. The degree of risk of the PTIF depends upon the 
underlying portfolio, which primarily consists of money market securities 
including certificates of deposit and top rated domestic commercial held by the 
Utah State Treasurer. The portfolio has a weighted average life of 90 days or less. 
The fair value of the District's position in the fund is the same as the value of the 
fund shares. 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

NOTE 9. RECONCILIATION OF INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

There were no interfund due to/due from balances during 2014 and the only 
interfund transfer was to close out the Non K -12 Fund Special Revenue Fund into 
the General Fund. This transfer was $188,4 70. 

$1,027,706 in school funds reported in the Other Governmental Funds column as 
cash and cash equivalents and as deposits payable in the General Fund, have been 
eliminated in the reporting of the government wide statements. 

NOTE 10. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION 

The District entered into a capital lease with Dell Financial Services for the 
purchase of computer back-up and storage equipment. The economic substance 
of the lease is that the District is financing the acquisition of the assets through a 
lease, and accordingly, it is recorded in the District's financial statements. 

The following is an analysis of the leased assets included in the property and 
equipment. 

Computer storage and back-up equipment $ 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

$ 

287,429 
(95,810) 

191,619 

The lease is secured by the assets. The lease agreement contains a bargain 
purchase price option at the end of the lease. The following is a schedule by years 
of the future minimum lease payments required under the lease together with the 
present value at year end: 

2015 $ 75,040 

2016 75,040 

Total minimum lease payments 150,080 

Less: amount representing interest (6,991) 

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 143,089 

47 



BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

NOTE 11. MEMBERSHIP CHANGES 

The District receives funding from the Utah State Office of Education (USOE) 
based on formulas calculated using the District's membership figures. As District 
membership increases or decreases, corresponding funding from the USOE has 
the potential to increase or decrease. The amount of any potential change is not 
available. 

NOTE 12. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District maintains insurance coverage for general liability, automobile, 
personal injury, errors and omissions, employee dishonest, and malpractice 
liability up to $1 0 million per occurrence through policies administered by the 
Utah State Risk Management Fund (Fund). The District also insures its buildings, 
including those under construction, and contents against all insurable risks of 
direct physical loss or damage with the Fund. Property physical damage is 
insured to replacement value with a $1,000 deductible, automobile physical 
damage is insured to actual value with a $500 deductible, other liability is limited 
to the lesser of $1 0 million or the statutory limit. The Fund is a public entity risk 
pool operated by the State for the benefit of the State and local governments 
within the State. The District pays annual premiums to the Fund. The Fund 
obtains independent coverage for insured events, up to $25 million per location. 
This is a pooled arrangement where the participants pay experience related annual 
premiums, which are designed to pay claims and build sufficient reserves so that 
the pool will be able to protect the participating entities with its own capital. The 
pool reinsures excess losses to preserve the capital base. Insurance coverage from 
coverage by major category of risk has remained relatively constant as compared 
to the prior fiscal year. Insurance settlements have not exceeded insurance 
coverage for the past three years. 

There are several lawsuits pending in which the District is involved. The 
District's counsel and insurance carriers estimate that the potential claims against 
the District, not covered by insurance, resulting from such litigation would not 
materially affect the financial statement of the District. 

The District maintains workers compensation insurance through the Utah School 
Boards Risk Management Mutual Insurance Association (Association). Annual 
premiums are charged to users by the Association to enable the payment of claims 
and to accumulate reserves for any unforeseen issues. Independent coverage is 
obtained to insure sufficient reserves and funds are available when needed. This 
is a pooled arrangement where the participants pay experience rated annual 
premiums, which are designed to pay claims and build sufficient reserves so that 
the pool will be able to protect the participating entities. Periodic billing 
premiums are received to cover any unanticipated changes from the facts and 
circumstances used to calculate the annual premium. 
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NOTE 13. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

RESTRICTED/ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION DETAIL 

The detail of the aggregated amounts in the Statement of Net Position and the 
Balance Sheet is as follows at June 30, 2014: 

Fund balances-governmental funds: 
Restricted state programs: 

General Fund: 
Tort reserve 
Special education 
Gifted/talented 
Advanced placement 
Concurrent enrollment 
At risk-homeless 
Youth in custody 
Trust lands 
Drivers education 
Dual Immersion 
Extended day kindergarten 
PerfOrmance plus 
Library books 
State literacy 
Job enhancement 
US TAR 

CTE programs 
Total General Fund 

Capital Project Fund: 
Capital Outlay Foundation School Building Program 

Net Position-Governmental activities 

Fund balance-governmental funds: 
Assigned-other purposes: 

General Fund: 
Credit recovery 
Classified professional development 
Americorp 
Wellness 
Budget shortfulls 
Termination benefits 
Special ed health services 
E-rate 
Total General Fund 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

46,873 
481,820 

26,543 
1,556 

145,737 
41,962 

118,360 
184,705 
78,858 
12,743 
40,073 

108,179 
659 

22,183 
15,023 
2,510 

703,994 
2,031,778 

3,805,661 

5,837,439 

25,409 
7,421 

12,939 
13,665 

2,862,744 
I ,000,000 

117,272 
495,451 

4,534.901 



NOTE 14. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

DEFERRED OUTLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of net position that 
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expenditure/expense) until then. The District currently has no items 
that fall within this category. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, deferred inflow of resources, represents an acquisition of net position 
that applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. The District reports one of these items. 
Unearned property taxes are reported as deferred inflows of resources since they 
are recognized as receivables before the period for which the taxes are levied. 
These amounts also are reported on the government-wide statement of net 
position. 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Variance with 
Final Budget-

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Property tax $ 6,770,000 $7,490,000 $7,758,929 $ 268,929 
Earnings on investments 50,000 25,000 28,388 3,388 

Other 

Total revenues 6,820,000 7,515,000 7,787,317 272,317 

Expenditures: 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 4,385,000 4,885,000 4,260,000 625,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 2,630,000 2,630,000 2,277,856 352,144 

Other 

Total expenditures 7,015,000 7,515,000 6,537,856 977,144 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures (195,000) 1,249,461 1,249,461 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Proceeds from sale of general obligation bonds 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances (195,000) 1,249,461 1,249,461 

Fund balance - beginning 8,087,458 8,087,458 8,087,458 

Fund balance - ending $ 7,892,458 $8,087,458 $9,336,919 $ 1,249,461 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT I 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL I MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

Variance with I 
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive I Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Local sources: I Property taxes $ 8,099,568 $ 9,100,000 $ 9,225,737 $ 125,737 
Charges for services 85,000 150,000 111,212 (38,788) 

Contributions I Earnings on investments 90,000 125,000 155,204 30,204 

Total local sources 8,274,568 9,375,000 9,492,153 117,153 

State sources: I Restricted grants in aid 15,000 

Total state sources 15,000 

Federal sources: I Restricted grants in aid 

Total rederal sources 

Total revenues 8,289,568 9,375,000 9,492,153 117,153 I 
Expenditures: 

I Support services: 

Operation and maintenance offu.cilities 

Student transportation 

I Facilities acquisition/construction 9,015,000 10,895,000 9,085,149 1,809,851 

Lease payment to MBA Fund 

Total expenditures 9,015,000 10,895,000 9,085,149 1,809,851 I Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures (725,432) (I ,520,000) 407,004 1,927,004 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): I Sale of fixed assets 25,000 25,000 71,147 46,147 

Operating Transfers In 
Operating Transfers Out I Total other financing sources (uses) 25,000 25,000 71,147 46,147 

Net change in fund balances (700,432) (I ,495,000) 478,151 1,973,151 

I 
Fund balance - beginning 27,917,782 27,917,782 27,917,782 

Fund balance - ending $27,217,350 $ 26,422,782 $ 28,395,933 $ 1,973,151 

I 
I 
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Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables: 

Accounts 

Intergovernmental 

Inventory 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Due to clubs 

Accrued salaries and benefits 

Unearned revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Non-spendable: 

Inventory 

Restricted: 

State programs 

Assigned: 

Non K- 12 programs 

Student Activities 

School Food Service 

Total fund balances 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2014 

Special Revenue Funds 

Student Non K-12 School Food 

Activities Fund Fund Service Fund 

$ 1,950,186 $ $ 576,666 

2,411 

365,515 

119,600 

$ 1,950,186 $ $ 1,064,192 

$ 67,262 $ $ 7,622 

1,247,876 

74,966 

1,315,138 82,588 

119,600 

635,048 

862,004 

635,048 981,604 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ I ,950,186 $ $ 1,064,192 
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Total Nonmajor 

Governmental 

Funds 

$ 2,526,852 

2,411 

365,515 

119,600 

$ 3,014,378 

$ 74,884 

1,247,876 

74,966 

1,397,726 

119,600 

635,048 

862,004 

1,616,652 

$ 3,014,378 



BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT I 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE I NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

I 
Special Revenue Funds 

I Total Nonmajor 

Student NonK-12 School Food Governmental 

Activities Fund Fund Service Fund Funds 

Revenues: I Property tax $ $ $ $ 
Charges fur services 2,936,046 1,186,833 4,122,879 

I Contnbutions 549,605 549,605 

Earnings on investments 10,284 2,835 13,119 

State aid 731,076 731,076 

I Federal aid 2,390,933 2,390,933 

Total revenues 3,495,935 4,311,677 7,807,612 

Expenditures: I 
Student activities 3,382,584 3,382,584 

Non K- 12 instructional services 

I School food services 4,149,363 4,149,363 

Total expenditures 3,382,584 4,149,363 7,531,947 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 113,351 162,314 275,665 I 
Other financing sources: 

Sale offixed assets I Operating transrers in 

Operating transrers out (188,470) (188,470) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (188,470) (188,470) I Net change in fund balances 113,351 (188,470) 162,314 87,195 

Fund balances - beginning 521,697 188,470 819,290 1,529,457 I Fund balances - ending $ 635,048 $ $ 981,604 $ 1,616,652 

I 
I 
I 
I 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
SCHOOL ACTIVITIES FUND 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Local sources: 

Charges for services $ 2,110,000 $ 2,210,000 $ 2.936,046 $ 726.046 
Contributio nsf grants 725,000 725,000 549,605 ( 175,395) 
Earnings on investments 12,200 12,200 10,284 (1,916) 

Total local sources 2,847,200 2,947,200 3,495,935 548,735 

State sources: 
Teacher materials & supplies 752,800 752,800 (752,800) 
Other state revenue 

Total state sources 752,800 752,800 (752,800) 
Total revenues 3,600,000 3,700,000 3,495,935 (204,065) 

Expenditures: 
Student activities 3,600,000 3,700,000 3,382,584 317,416 

Total expenditures 3,600,000 3,700,000 3,382,584 317,416 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

(under) expenditures 113,351 113,351 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses 113.351 113.351 

Fund balances - beginning 521,697 521,697 521.697 
Fund balances- ending $ 521,697 $ 521.697 $ 635.048 $ 113.351 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT I 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL I NON K-12 FUND 
MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 I 
Variance with 
Final Budget- I Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 

Original Final Amounts (Negative) 
Revenues: I Local sources: 

Property taxes and fee in lieu $ $ $ $ 

Charges for services 680,500 I Earnings on investments 5,500 

Total local sources 686,000 

State sources: I Adult education 145,500 

Special education preschool 740,000 

Special education-severally disabled 91,900 I Drivers education 105,000 

Other state revenue 
Total State Sources 1,082,400 I Federal sources: 

Pre-school incentive 270,000 

Migrant program 

I Adult education 
Other federal revenue 

Total federal sources 270,000 

I Total revenues 2,038,400 

Expenditures: 

I Non- instructional services 1,867,174 

Community services 
Total expenditures 1,867,174 

I Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 171,226 

Other financing sources (uses): I Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out (188,470) (188,470) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (188,470) (188,470) I 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other sources 

over expenditures and other uses 171,226 ( 188,470) (188,470) I 
Fund balances - beginning 188,470 188,470 188,470 

Fund balances - ending $ 359,696 $ $ $ I 
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I BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-

I BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
SCHOOL FOOD SERVICES 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

I FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 
Variance with 

Final Budget-

I Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Revenues: 

I 
Local sources: 

Lunch sales $ 1,326,000 $1,432,029 $ 1,186,833 $ (245, 196) 
Earnings on investments 2,835 2,835 
Other Income 6,000 7,500 (7,500) 

II 
Total local sources 1,332,000 1,439,529 1,189,668 (249,861) 

State sources: 
State lunch program 645,000 750,000 731,076 (18,924) il Total state sources 645,000 750,000 731,076 (18,924) 

Federal sources: 

\ School kmch reimbursement 320,000 380,000 389,134 9,134 ,. School lunch free and reduced reimbursement 1,490,000 1,717,670 1,561,396 (156,274) 
School breakfust 389,500 389,500 411,464 21,964 
District certification program 6,619 6,619 

'I Other child nutrition: 
Child and adult 12,830 22,320 9,490 

' 
Other 

Total rederal sources 2,199,500 2,500,000 2,390,933 (109,067) 

I Total revenues 4,176,500 4,689,529 4,311,677 (377,852) 

Expenditures: 

:I School food services: 
Salaries 1,431,529 1,553,320 1,377,453 175,867 

I Employee benefits 500,065 793,410 473,875 319,535 

jl Purchased services 4,000 38,352 (34,352) 
Supplies and materials 2,120,000 2,186,270 2,011,787 174,483 
Equipment 60,000 60,000 7,237 52,763 

j I 
Other objects 118,000 118,000 240,659 ( 122,659) 

Total expenditures 4,229,594 4,715,000 4,149,363 565,637 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over 

'I i 
(under) expenditures (53,094) (25,471) 162,314 187,785 

Other financing sources (uses): 

ll Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

I Total other financing sources (uses) 

I Net change in fund balances (53,094) (25,471) 162,314 187,785 

,I Fw1d balances- beginning 819,290 819,290 819,290 
FWld balances- ending $ 766,196 $ 793,819 $ 981,604 $ 187,785 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Board of Education 
Box Elder School District 
Brigham City, UT 84302 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Box Elder School District's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of Box Elder School District's major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2014. Box Elder School District's major federal programs are identified in 
the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grants applicable to its major federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Box Elder School District's 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Box Elder School 
District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Box Elder 
School District's compliance. 

P.O. DRAWER 577 • 205 NORTH MAIN 
BRIGHAM CITY, UTAH 84302 • (435) 723-8563 • FAX (435) 723-8565 59 



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Box Elder School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Box Elder School District is responsible for establishing and maintammg 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Box Elder School District's internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB 
Circular A -13 3, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Box 
Elder School District's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material 
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

This report is intended solely for the information of the management, Board of Education. and 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Lk'· 
Brigh:J~ 

<t a. /Jc 
I 

October 24, 2014 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Thru 
Pass - Thru Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's 

Program Title Nwnber Number 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 
Passed through Utah State Office ofEducation: 

National School Lunch Program Cluster: 
School Breakfust Program 10.553 44 
National School Ltmch Program 10.555 42/43 

Food Distribution-Commodities 10.555 NA 
Total National School Ltmch Program Cluster 

District Certification Program 10.579 NA 

Passed through Box Elder County: 
Secure Payments fur States and Cotmties Containing Federal Lands 10.665 N/A 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 

U.S. Department ofEducation 
Passed through Utah State Office ofEducation: 

Special Education Cluster: 
IDEA Disabilities Act-Special Education 84.027 19 
IDEA Special Education-Preschool Grants 84.173 52 
Total Special Education Cluster 
Title I Grant to Local Education Agencies 84.010 8 
Migrant Education-State Grant Program 84.011 15 
Career and Technical Education- Basic Grants to States 84.048 20/21 
English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 73 
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 74 

Total U.S. Department of Education 

Corporation fur National and Commtmity Service 
Passed through Ogden City School District: 

Utah Americorp Literacy Initiative 94.006 N/A 
Total Corporation for National and Community Service 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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Expenditures 

$ 411,464 

1,950,530 

312,668 
2,674,662 

6,619 

53,189 
2,734,470 

2,307,042 X 
115,311 X 

2,422,353 

835,673 
112,818 X 
92,588 
33,803 

303,525 X 

3,800,760 

41,462 

41,462 

$ 6,576,692 



NOTE 1. 

NOTE2. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

PURPOSE OF SCHEDULE 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is a 
supplementary schedule to the District's financial statements and is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis. Because the schedule presents only a 
selected portion of the activities of the District, it is not intended to, and does 
not, present either the financial position, changes in fund balances or other 
current funds revenue, expenditures and other changes of the District. The 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal 
award programs of Box Elder School District (District). All federal financial 
awards received directly from federal agencies as well as federal financial 
awards passed through from other government agencies are included in the 
schedule. Of the federal awards presented in the Schedule, the District 
provided no federal awards to subrecipients. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation 

The information in the schedule is presented in accordance with OMB Circular 
A-133. 

Pursuant to the Single Audit Act of 1984 (Public Law 98-502), the Single 
Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (Public Law 104-156) and OMB Circular A-
133, federal awards are defined as assistance provided by a federal agency, 
either directly or indirectly, in the form of grants, contracts, cooperative 
agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property, interest subsidies, insurance, or 
direct appropriations. Accordingly, nonmonetary federal assistance, including 
federal surplus property, would be included in federal awards, if applicable, 
and therefore, would be reported on the schedule. Federal awards do not 
include direct federal cash assistance to individuals. Solicited contracts 
between the State and Federal government for which the Federal Government 
procedures tangible goods or services are not considered to be federal awards. 

The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133 
establish the levels of expenditures or expenses to be used in defining Type A 
and Type B federal award programs. Type A programs, for the District, are 
those programs. which exceed $300,000 in federal expenditures, distributions, 
or issuances for the year ended June 30, 2014. 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Reporting Entity 

The reporting entity is fully described in Note 1 of the District's financial 
statements. The schedule includes all federal award programs administered by 
the District for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Basis of Accounting 

The expenditures in the schedule are recognized as incurred based on the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, which is the same basis of accounting 
used by the District's governmental funds as described in Note 1 to the 
District's basic financial statements, and the cost accounting principles 
contained in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State and Local 
Governments. Under these cost principles certain types of expenditures are 
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

The schedule does not include matching expenditures. 

Some of the District's federal awards are received directly from the granting 
federal agency (i.e., the District is the primary recipient). However, the 
majority of federal awards, as identified on the schedule, are passed through a 
separate entity prior to receipt by the District (i.e., the District is a sub­
recipient). 
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NOTE3. 

BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

RECONCILIATION OF AMOUNTS REPORTED ON SCHEDULE OF 
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS TO THE DISTRICT'S 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

I 
I 
I 

The following is a reconciliation of the amounts reported in the Schedule of I 
Expenditures of Federal Awards with the amounts reported in the District's fund 
financial statements. 

Federal fimds reported in the General Fund 

Federal fimds reported in the School Lunch Fund 

Plus: 
Amount recorded on Schedule for Food 

Distribution not recorded on the fimd financial 

state~nts. 

Amount of Medicaid funds recorded as federal in 

General Fund statements but are charges for 

services 

Amount received from Internal Revenue Service fur 

revenue and expense of interest on Qualified School 

Construction Build America Bonds of$128,236. 

Amount recorded in School Food Service Fund 

as federal revenue but is reimbursement for food 

services. 

Expenditures ofFederal Awards 
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$ 4,579,658 

2,390,933 

6,970,591 

312,668 

(684,247) 

(22,320) 

$ 6,576,692 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Section 1 -Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of Auditor's report issued: 
Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not 
considered to be a material weakness? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not 
considered to be a material weakness? 

Type of Auditor's report on compliance for major 
programs: 

Any audit finding; disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Circular A-133, Section 
.510(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Numbers 

84.027 
84.173 

84.011 

84.367 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

Unmodified 

__yes _K_no 

__yes __x_ none reported 

__yes _K_no 

__yes _K_no 

__yes _X_none reported 

Unmodified 

__yes _K_no 

Name ofFederal Program or Cluster 
Special Education Cluster: 
Special Education 
Special Education -Preschool 
Migrant Education 
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 

$300,000 

_X __ yes _no 
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BOX ELDER SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014 

Section II -Financial Statement findings 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of 
noncompliance related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance 
with paragraphs 5.18 through 5.20 of Government Auditing Standards. 

There were no significant deficiencies and no material weaknesses noted during our audit, which 
are required to be reported. 

Section III- Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no federal award findings or questioned costs noted during our audit that are required 
to be reported in accordance with OMB A-133. Accordingly, no such matters are reported. 

66 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 


